
AGENDA

County Road Administration Board

April 16-17, 2015

CRAB Office - Olympia Washington

1 Call to Order

2 Chair's Report - Commissioner Snyder

A. Approve April 16-17, 2015 Agenda Action Enclosure

B. Approve Minutes of January 29-30, 2015 CRABoard Meeting Action Enclosure

C. Introduce Chad Johnson, DES SACS

3 Emergency WAC Changes - Randy Hart, PE Action Enclosure

4 Rural Arterial Program - Randy Hart, PE

A. Program Status Report Info Enclosure

B. RAP Project Actions Update Info Enclosure

C. Resolution 2015-003 Apportion RATA Revenues to Regions Action Enclosure

D. Resolution 2015-004 Allocate Estimated Revenue to Projects Action Enclosure

E. Project Requests:

(1)  Columbia County Phase Extension - Tucannon Road Action Enclosure

(2)  Jefferson County Emergency Project - Dosewallips Slide Action Enclosure

(3)  Spokane County Moratorium - Lapsing Bigelow Gulch Action Enclosure

             (4) Yakima County Additional Extension - North Meyers Rd Bridge Action Enclosure

5 Set Public Hearing for July 2015 Board Meeting Action Enclosure

6 Compliance Report - Derek Pohle, PE Info Enclosure

7 Resolution 2015-005 Annual Certification - Jay Weber Action Handout

8 Director's Report - Jay Weber

A. CRABoard Positions Info Enclosure

B. WSACE County Engineer of the Year Nominations Info Enclosure

C. WSACE Project-Program Manager Award Nominations Info Enclosure

D. Budget

(1)  Current Budget Status Info Enclosure

(2)  2015-17 Budget - HB1299 Info Enclosure

E. Legislative Update/Discussion Info

F. Discussion on Gravel Road Pending Study - Bob Moorhead Info Enclosure

RECESS 6:00 PM Dinner at Ricardo's

Thursday  1:00 PM



Friday 8:30AM

9 Call to Order

10 Transportation Funding - Scott Merriman, Office of State Treasurer Info

11 Deputy Director's Report - Walt Olsen

A. County Engineers/PWD Status Info Enclosure

B. County Visits Completed Since January 2015 Info Enclosure

C. County Audits Info Enclosure

D. Other Activities Info Enclosure

12 Division Reports

A. Intergovernmental Policy Manager - Jeff Monsen Info Enclosure

B. Maintenance Manager - Bob Moorhead Info Enclosure

C. Assistant Director - Steve Hillesland

(1)  Systemic Safety Project Info Enclosure

(2)  UAV/Drone Simulator Demonstration Info

ADJOURN

Chairman's Signature:  _________________________________

Attest:  ______________________________________________



1 

Minutes 
County Road Administration Board 

January 29-30, 2015 

CRAB Office – Olympia, Washington 

Members Present: Dale Snyder, Douglas County Commissioner, Chair 
Andrew Woods, PE, Columbia County Engineer, 2nd Vice-Chair 
Rob Coffman, Lincoln County Commissioner 
Ken Klein, Snohomish County Council Member 
Bob Koch, Franklin County Commissioner 
Todd Mielke, Spokane County Commissioner 
Bill Schulte, Lewis County Commissioner 
Mark Storey, PE, Whitman County Engineer 

 Member Absent:   Brian Stacy, PE, Pierce County Engineer, Vice-Chair 

Staff Present: Jay Weber, Executive Director 
Walt Olsen, PE, Deputy Director  
Steve Hillesland, Assistant Director 
Jeff Monsen, PE, Intergovernmental Policy Manager 
Bob Moorhead, PE, Maintenance Manager 
Randy Hart, PE, Grant Programs Manager 
Derek Pohle, PE, Compliance & Data Analysis Manager 
Karen Pendleton, Executive Assistant 
Rhonda Mayner, Secretary 
**Bob Davis, Systems Manager 
**Kathy O’Shea, Database Specialist 
**Jackie Nguyen, Project Applications Specialist 

Guests: *Bill Wright, Clark County
*Jeff Kostechka, Clark County
*Terri Jeffreys, Mason County Commissioner
*Melissa McFadden, PE, Mason County Engineer
*Sarah Grice, Mason County
*Paul Randall-Grutter, PE, Skagit County Engineer
*Forrest Jones, Skagit County
*Tim Homann, PE, Skamania County Engineer
*Bob Brueggeman, PE, Spokane County Engineer, via conference call
**Noah Crocker, WA State Transportation Commission 

*Present January 29, 2015 only
**Present January 30, 2015 only 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Snyder called the County Road Administration Board quarterly meeting to order 
at 1:00 p.m. on Thursday, January 29, 2015, at the CRAB Office in Olympia. 



2 
 

CHAIR’S REPORT 
 

Approve January 29-30, 2015 Agenda 
Commissioner Schulte moved and Mr. Storey seconded to approve the agenda as 
presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approve Minutes of October 30-31, 2014 CRABoard Meeting 
Commissioner Mielke moved and Commissioner Coffman seconded to approve the 
minutes of the October 30-31, 2014 CRABoard meeting.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Approve Minutes of November 20, 2014 Special CRABoard Meeting 
Commissioner Koch moved and Commissioner Schulte seconded to approve the 
minutes of the November 20, 2014 Special CRABoard meeting.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Current Budget Status 
Mr. Weber reviewed CRAB’s current budget status. He noted that the format of the 
report has changed. There have been more capital purchases in the last quarter, 
and the prior deficit in the CAPP fund has been eliminated. The RAP fund balance 
is slightly higher than normal, but vouchers are coming in and that balance will 
decline. 
 
2014 Annual Report 
Mr. Weber noted that the report has been e-mailed to all county contacts, as well as 
mailed to the legislators and staff on the transportation committees. It is also posted 
on the CRAB website.  
 
2015-17 Budget Request 
Mr. Weber reported that the 2015-17 Governor’s Budget Request included the 
expected CRAB funding, with the exception of $10 million in revenue from the 
Highway Safety Account, which has been distributed by the CAPP formula in recent 
years; although similar funding for FMSIB and TIB is included in the proposed 
budget. Staff will consult with OFM in an attempt to have these funds reinstated.  
 
New July 2014 Meeting Date 
Chair Snyder noted that there is a conflict with the July 2015 dates. Following 
discussion, Second Vice-Chair Woods moved and Mr. Storey seconded to change 
the dates to July 16-17, 2015. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Weber reported that CRAB will be holding its 50th Anniversary Celebration in 
conjunction with the WSACE Annual Meeting June 16-18 in Leavenworth. 

 
 
 



3 
 

RURAL ARTERIAL PROGRAM 
 
Program Status Report 
Mr. Hart reviewed the Rural Arterial Program status report. 1,005 of 1,102 projects 
have been completed. Anticipated revenue to the end of the 2013-15 biennium is 
$522,045,870. RAP expenditures to date total $497,829,088. RAP obligations 
remaining through the 2013-15 biennium total $109,340,770. The RATA fund 
balance is approximately $14,000,000. 
 
Mr. Hart reported that nine projects face construction lapsing in April 2015. Two 
projects face design lapsing in April 2015, but those counties have indicated they 
will begin submitting vouchers soon. He noted other project activities and requests 
since the October 2014 CRABoard meeting. 
 
Regional Meetings Update 
Mr. Hart reported that meetings were held in December and January in all five 
regions. Staff provided overview and guidance on scope changes, required project 
development and spending plan certifications, RAP WAC’s 136-100 through 136-
210, maintenance management reports, and annual forms submittal and 
compliance. He noted that all regions supported the concept of CRAB staff being 
authorized to approve minor scope changes to existing RAP projects. 

 
Resolution 2015-001 - Apportion RATA Funds to Regions 
Mr. Hart presented Resolution 2015-001 - Apportion RATA Funds to Regions, 
which authorizes the accrued amount of $4,705,550 now credited to RATA for 
November 2014 through January 2015 be apportioned to the regions by the 
established 2013-2015 biennium regional percentages after setting aside $120,000 
for administration. 
 
Following questions and discussion, Second Vice-Chair Woods moved and Mr. 
Storey                     seconded to approve Resolution 2015-001 - Apportion RATA 
Funds to Regions.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution 2015-002 – Delegation of Authority 
Mr. Hart presented Resolution 2015-002 – Delegation of Authority, which gives the 
Executive Director or designee the authority to develop, approve and disseminate 
those forms and worksheets necessary to implement the prioritization of RAP 
projects; to approve increased allocations of RATA funds to previously approved 
projects; to approve withdrawals and terminations of RAP projects; to execute all 
CRAB/County contracts; to approve RAP vouchers; and to approve county-
requested scope changes, design changes listed in the final prospectus, beginning 
and ending milepost changes, and project length changes. All county-requested 
scope changes under this section must not alter project funding or funding status in 
any way, and will be reported to the Board at each quarterly meeting. 
 
The Executive Director or designee will not be authorized to act on county requests 
for waivers of required RATA reimbursements. These will be brought before the 



4 
 

Board for consideration and approval or denial. 
 
Following questions and discussion, the Board requested that points regarding 
increased funding be clarified, and the resolution be brought back to the Board. 

 
Clark County Project Request 
Mr. Hart reported that Clark County is requesting a scope reduction for their Manley 
Road project, to reduce roadway width improvements from 26 feet to the existing 22 
feet from milepost 1.58 to 1.72, with no reduction in RATA funding. 
 
Mr. Hart noted that the project gained partial funding in April 2013.Total estimated 
cost at that time was $2,159,000. The current estimate is $3,354,000. The 
remaining funding to the total $1,833,100 requested is anticipated to be awarded in 
future allocations. The reduction request is for a section of the project that has the 
most severe environmental and right-of-way constraints. The county proposes 
instead to install guardrail to the existing width, eliminating the need for further 
environmental mitigation and its associated costs. 
 
Staff has reviewed the project site and noted the areas where the original widening 
would create the cited impacts. Staff finds that the proposal will reduce the score of 
the project from 70.40 to 63.31, still well above the lowest ranked funded project. 
Staff finds that the county still plans to make the significant improvements to the 
safety and structure of the road stated in the prospectus, and recommends 
approval of the reduced width with no reduction in RATA funding.  
 
Mr. Hart introduced Mr. Wright and Mr. Kostechka, who gave background and 
further information to the Board.  
 
Following questions and discussion, Mr. Storey moved and Commissioner Schulte 
seconded to approve Clark County’s request for a scope reduction for their Manley 
Road project, to reduce roadway width improvements from 26 feet to 22 feet from 
milepost 1.58 to 1.72, with no reduction in RATA funding. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Mason County Project Request 
Mr. Hart reported that Mason County is requesting waiver of reimbursement of 
$98,843.09 in expended RATA funds used for design of their withdrawn North 
Island Drive project.  
 
Mr. Hart noted that the project gained full funding in March 2010. The estimated 
cost of the project at that time was $1,420,000; however, current estimation is over 
$3,200,000. The project faces lapsing in April 2015. The county has withdrawn the 
project due to several environmental factors and permit requirements. The county 
does plan some future improvements to the project. 
 
Staff reviewed the project records and verified the costs, as well as the county’s 
stated plans to program a simpler road rebuild and seal coat overlay in 2015-16. 



5 
 

Staff finds that based on these plans, approximately 20% of the design efforts, or 
$19,769, may be usable for this specific project. Staff therefore recommended a 
waiver of $19,769 in design costs be approved, and the remaining $79,074.09 be 
paid back to the County Road Administration Board. 
 
Mr. Hart introduced Commissioner Jeffreys, Ms. McFadden, and Ms. Grice, who 
gave background and further information to the Board.  
 
Following questions and discussion, Commissioner Schulte moved and Mr. Storey 
seconded to approve a waiver of $19,769 in design costs be approved, and the 
remaining $79,074.09 be paid back to the County Road Administration Board. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skagit County Project Request 
Mr. Hart reported that Skagit County is requesting a scope reduction for their Bow 
Hill Road project, reducing the proposed roadway pavement width from 40 feet to 
the existing 28 feet, with no reduction in RATA funding. 
 
Mr. Hart reminded the Board that the county first made this request at the October 
2014 CRABoard meeting, but was asked to come back with more information. He 
noted that the county was awarded partial funding for the project in April 2013, and 
the remaining portion is anticipated to be awarded in April 2015 for a total of 
$2,306,700 in RATA funding.  
 
Due to environmental concerns and additional costs related to the alignment that 
would be required with a new 40 foot paved section, the county is proposing to 
reduce the paved width to the existing 28 feet and construct the remaining width on 
earthen/grass shoulders over gravel base materials that will accommodate full 
roadway widening if and when funds become available in the future. Retaining walls 
will be installed to support the roadway and adjacent hillside, the roadway will be 
repaved, and guardrails installed where warranted to address roadside safety. 
 
Staff has reviewed the site and noted that existing pavement condition and sub-
base failure warrants a full rebuild of the roadway structure. Staff finds that the 
proposal will reduce the score of the project from 90.91 to 80.91, still well above the 
lowest ranked funded project. Therefore, staff recommended approval of Skagit 
County’s request for a scope reduction for their Bow Hill Road project, reducing the 
proposed roadway pavement width from 40 feet to the existing 28 feet, with no 
reduction in RATA funding. 
 
Mr. Hart introduced Mr. Randall-Grutter and Mr. Jones, who gave background and 
further information to the Board.  
 
Following questions and discussion, Second Vice-Chair Woods moved and 
Commissioner Mielke seconded to approve Skagit County’s request for a scope 
reduction for their Bow Hill Road project, reducing the proposed roadway pavement 



6 
 

width from 40 feet to the existing 28 feet, with no reduction in RATA funding. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Chair Snyder called for a brief recess. 
 
Chair Snyder reported that Spokane County would be next on the agenda, as 
Mr. Brueggeman was waiting on the phone. 
 

Spokane County Project Request 
Mr. Hart reported that Spokane County is requesting a scope change for their 
Bigelow Gulch Road 4 project, revising the milepost limits from 3.7-6.63 to 3.7-6.75, 
an increase of .12 miles, with no increase in RATA funding. 
 
Mr. Hart noted that the project was funded in several cycles, with the final amount 
awarded in March 2010 for a total of $5,987,480. The original end point of the 
project is located at the intersection with Forker Road, where an at-grade tee was 
proposed. The final configuration plans to build a much larger radius curve at the 
intersection and use a partially separated grade design.  
 
Staff has reviewed the original prospectuses and finds that the realignment scope 
change is a better use of RATA funds. The proposal will reduce the score of the 
project from 237.12 to 230.39, remaining the highest-ranked project on that array. 
Therefore, staff recommended approval of Spokane County’s request for a scope 
change for their Bigelow Gulch Road 4 project, revising the milepost limits from 3.7-
6.63 to 3.7-6.75, an increase of .12 miles, with no increase in RATA funding. 
 
Commissioner Mielke recused himself from discussion and voting on this request.  
 
Mr. Hart noted that Mr. Brueggeman is available via conference call to give 
background and further information.  
 
Following questions and discussion, Commissioner Schulte moved and 
Commissioner Koch seconded to approve Spokane County’s request for a scope 
change for their Bigelow Gulch Road 4 project, revising the milepost limits from 3.7-
6.63 to 3.7-6.75, and increase of .12 miles, with no increase in RATA funding. 
Motion carried unanimously, with Commissioner Mielke recused. 

 
Skamania County Project Request 
Mr. Hart reported that Skamania County is requesting a waiver of payback of 
$18,963.03 in expended RATA funds used for design of their withdrawn Washougal 
River Road project.  
 
Mr. Hart noted that the project was funded in March 2010 at an estimated cost of 
$179,000. The county has withdrawn the project due to discovery of over 112 
cultural items within the existing right-of-way that would require an excavation permit 
estimated at $16,000 along with other cost increases. The current estimated cost of 
the project is $250,000. 



7 
 

Staff has reviewed the project records and the site, noting a fair or poor surface 
condition. The county has no plans to improve the road at this time. Staff finds that a 
minimal amount of the design effort to date may be usable for any future works, and 
therefore recommended that a waiver of $1,500 in design costs be approved, and 
the remaining $17,463.03 be paid back to the County Road Administration Board. 
Mr. Hart introduced Mr. Homann, who gave background and further information to 
the Board.  
 
Following questions and discussion, Commissioner Coffman moved and 
Councilmember Klein seconded to approve that a waiver of $1,500 in design costs 
be approved, and the remaining $17,463.03 be paid back to the County Road 
Administration Board. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

County Engineers/Public Works Directors 
Mr. Olsen noted that Franklin County continues under an Acting County Engineer 
appointment of Dan Ford, PE, Benton County Engineer. Franklin County will 
continue to advertise for applicants and Mr. Ford will serve until a replacement is 
named. 
 
County Visits completed since October 2014 
Mr. Olsen noted visits to Clark, Skamania and Spokane Counties. Numerous 
contacts with County Engineers took place in other venues. 
 
State Auditor’s Report 
The 1997 State Auditor Office (SAO) audit of CRAB concluded that the minutes of 
the Board meetings needed specific mention of SAO audits of the counties and of 
any findings that might relate to the statutory responsibilities of CRAB. The minutes 
also need to reflect any recommendations from the CRABoard to staff in response to 
the audits. This report details our staff procedures to satisfy the SAO. 
 
Staff has reviewed 17 audit reports representing 17 counties since the October 2014 
Board meeting.  Four audits contained a total of four findings issued and none 
involved County Road Funds in some form.  Any audits with county name in bold 
print revealed substantive findings involving County Road Funds. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

2013 Audits 

 

Report # Entity/Description Report Type Audit Period Date Released New Find# Co. Rd? PrevFind# Status

1013421 Chelan County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 1/5/2015 1 0 0 NCR

1013385 Pierce County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 0 0 0

1013410 Yakima County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 0 0 0

1013286 Douglas County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/29/2014 0 0 1 NCR

1013199 Whitman County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/22/2014 0 0 0

1013148 Kitsap County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/18/2014 0 0 0

1013130 Ferry County Accountability 01/01/2012 to 12/31/2013 12/15/2014 0 0 0

1013105 Jefferson County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/11/2014 0 0 0

1013110 Walla Walla County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/11/2014 0 0 0

1013039 Clallam County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/1/2014 0 0 0

1013057 Klickitat County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 12/1/2014 0 0 1 NCR

1013029 Okanogan County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 11/26/2014 0 0 0

1013002 Kittitas County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 11/20/2014 0 0 0

1012959 Cowlitz County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 11/13/2014 0 0 1 NCR

1012940 Stevens County Accountability 01/01/2012 to 12/31/2013 11/10/2014 0 0 0

1012917 Pend Oreille County Accountability 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 11/6/2014 0 0 0

1012887 King County Special 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2013 10/30/2014 0 0 0  
 
 

Activities 
Mr. Olsen reviewed a list of his activities since the October 2014 CRABoard meeting. 

 
 
 
Chair Snyder recessed the meeting at 3:52 p.m. on January 29, 2015.  The 
CRABoard meeting will resume January 30, 2015 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

9 
 

County Road Administration Board 
Friday, January 30, 2015 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The second day of the winter CRABoard meeting was called to order by Chair Snyder at    
8:30 a.m. on January 30, 2015. 
 
WSTC PRESENTATION 
Mr. Crocker gave a brief summary of the WSTC’s 2015 Revenue Proposal to the 
legislature. He noted that the proposal contains three suggestions for increasing 
revenue, and four for reducing costs.   
 
Resolution 2015-002 – Delegation of Authority continued 
Mr. Weber presented the revised Resolution 2015-002 – Delegation of Authority. 
Following questions and discussion, Commissioner Schulte moved and Commissioner 
Mielke seconded to approve Resolution 2015-002 – Delegation of Authority. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Chair Snyder called for a brief recess. 
 
STAFF UPDATES 
 

Information Services 
Mr. Hillesland reported on the Road Design Conference held November 4-6, 2014 in 
Spokane. Over 100 participants attended. He noted that Jim Ayres, CRAB’s Design 
Systems Engineer, attended Autodesk University in Las Vegas, with over 10,000 
participants. 
 
He updated the Board on the progress of the Mobility Systemic Safety Project 
Selection Tool. 
 
He reported that the use of drones or Unmanned Aerial Vehicles for surveying and 
other uses is being explored by the IT staff.  

 
Chair Snyder noted a slight change in the agenda order. 
 

Compliance Report 
Mr. Pohle updated the Board on the status of an audit finding against Clark County, 
noting that their Board of County Commissioners restored $1,659,699 to the Road 
Fund in a supplementary budget hearing in November 2014. Staff has been 
supporting Skamania County regarding a continuing finding that the county’s financial 
condition continues to decline and the county is at risk of not being able to meet its 
current obligations and maintain services.   
 
He reported on the counties’ compliance in submitting the six reports due to CRAB by 
December 31 of each year, noting all 39 counties had submitted the forms in the 



 

10 
 

required electronic formats by the deadline. Five counties did not submit the required 
supporting documents by the deadline, but did so promptly once contacted by staff. 

 
Mr. Pohle reminded the Board that all counties are required to have responded to 
and/or processed at least 90% of the county road collision reports submitted to them 
for coding by December 31 of each calendar year.  For 2014, 38 of 39 counties were 
compliant as required with the last being compliant by January 12, 2015.  That county 
experienced some staff illness issues at the end of the year and promptly dealt with 
the few outstanding collision reports as soon as they were able. 
 
Mr. Pohle reported on his activities since the October 2014 CRABoard meeting. 
 
At the October 2014 CRABoard meeting Mr. Pohle requested initial discussion and 
consideration of a new standard of good practice related to RAP eligibility and use of 
road funds for traffic law enforcement. The Board directed staff to contact the county 
engineers and request that they review and discuss with their legislative authorities, 
and Sheriffs if willing, and provide feedback.   
 
Mr. Pohle presented the proposal to the county engineers at the November 2014 
WSACE meeting in Spokane, and at each of the regional RAP meetings this last 
quarter.  The proposal received almost universal support at these meetings with 
minor concerns regarding implementation details. Staff requested that the county 
engineers respond by email regarding their specific comments and any responses 
and reactions from their legislative authorities and Sheriffs. Thirteen counties have 
responded favorably, with one county being decidedly negative in its response 
indicating CRAB should not introduce new regulation, and the other not wanting to 
shed any more light on this subject than necessary. 
 
The Board directed staff to again contact county engineers as well as county 
commissioners and councilmembers with revised language of the proposed standard, 
and ask them to respond to staff with their responses and comments, as well as a 
request for information on how each county’s sheriff reports to the governing authority 
on the use of diverted road funds.  

 
Chair Snyder called for a brief recess. 
 

Intergovernmental Policy 
Mr. Monsen reported on his activities since the October 2014 CRABoard meeting, 
including visits to Franklin, Lewis, Whatcom, Clark and Cowlitz Counties. 
 
He noted that he will be working the SAO field offices to introduce them to what 
CRAB is and does and develop a closer working relationship with them. 
 
He reported that 28 participants from 14 counties attended the customized training for 
County Commissioners and Council Members presented in November 2014 at the 
WSAC Conference, and provided the Board with a copy of the comments from the 
participants. He summarized upcoming County Engineer Training sessions.  



 

11 
 

Maintenance Management Report 
Mr. Moorhead briefed the Board on his activities since the October 2014 CRABoard 
meeting, noting a Maintenance Review in Pierce County and a RAP Project File and 
Field Review in Grant County. 
 
He reported on training held in November and December representing a total of 132 
participants representing over 20 counties as well as nine other organizations. He 
noted upcoming training scheduled for the spring. 
 
He noted plans have begun to update a gravel road report originally published by the 
CRABoard in 1997.  

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Ms. Mayner updated the Board on area hotel availability and access to per diem rates 
for future Board meetings.  
 
Ms. Mayner asked the Board for feedback regarding the use of electronic meeting 
materials versus hard copy. The Board was very positive and instructed staff to 
continue with the electronic format. 
 
In response to a query from Mr. Hillesland, the Board indicated they would like to 
have the IT Staff do a presentation at the April 2015 meeting.  

 
 
 
Chair Snyder adjourned the CRABoard meeting at 11:29 a.m. on Friday, January 30, 
2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:  ________________________ 











RAP ACCT.xls

 RURAL ARTERIAL

 PROGRAM
 APRIL, 2015

PROJECT STATUS:

Billing Phase TOTAL

Completed

Some RATA paid

No RATA Paid

TOTAL              

FUND STATUS

     Anticipated Revenue to end of '13 - '15 Biennium:
Fuel tax receipts and interest to June, 2013

Estimated fuel tax receipts and interest July 2013 thru June 2015
Total estimated revenue

     RAP Expenditures to date:    

To Completed Projects

To Projects in Design or Under Construction

Administration

 Total RATA spent

     RAP Obligations:
RATA Balance on Current Active Projects
Pending funds to be allocated (active projects)

Estimated remaining administration through 2013 - 2015 biennium
Total RATA obligated

QTR1 - 2015 RATA ACTIVITY:

MONTH

January

February

March

Awaiting

Closeout

83,964,188                

453,136,284              

38,506,461                

(37,179.41)

'13-'15

1099

2

5

1 41

2

887

164,000

105,533,141

21,404,952

($36,986.07)

$16,108,480.00 $14,795,461.88

'83-'03

886

1

'03-'05

9,742,441

15

'05-'07

1 1009

522,045,870

(111,918.71)

37,289,913                

501,385,186

484,755,956              

2

'11-'13

73

45 245

(2,757,528.87)

(2,010,376.00)

28 42 50

INTEREST +

Cash Rcpts

$14,264,681.12

BEGINNING

 BALANCE

ENDING

 BALANCE

ADMIN 

CHARGES

MVFT 

REVENUE

PROJECT 

PAYMENTS #

$14,264,681.12

$15,314,414.58

(37,753.23)

TOTALS: $4,433,505.19 $12,087.97 (5,127,739.87)

$14,795,461.88

26 34 18

3 4 3

$3,142.28

$4,176.76

11

66

$4,768.93

25$1,479,121.70

$1,512,597.89

$1,441,785.60

30

(359,835.00)

'07-'09

42

'09-'11

2 7 21

Completed
48%

No RATA Paid
1%

Some RATA 
Paid
42%

Awaiting 
Closeout

9%

Projects Funded
2003 - 2014

4/16/2015



Projects facing Construction Lapsing in April, 2015

County Road Name BMP EMP Status

Columbia LYONS FERRY ROAD 0.00 0.96 4/16/2009 4/16/2015 Will Seek Extension

Spokane BIGELOW GULCH RD 4 3.70 6.63 4/19/2007 4/19/2015 Pending CRABoard Action

Yakima NORTH MEYERS ROAD BR #502 2.81 2.83 4/19/2007 4/19/2015 Pending CRABoard Action

Projects facing Design Lapsing later this spring, 2015

County Road Name BMP EMP Description Status

Ferry Bridge Cr 12 8.30 10.82 4/16/2009 5/20/2015 phase lapsng Pending

Cowlitz Hazel Dell Rd 0.00 0.02 4/16/2009 6/4/2015 phase lapsing Pending

Other Project Activities / Requests this quarter

Effective 

County Road Name BMP EMP PROJ # Action Date Status

Mason North Island Drive 0.31 1.31 2307-01 Payback Waived by CRAB 1/29/2015 $79,074.09 payback in process

Skamania Washougal River Rd 11.38 11.61 3010-01 Payback Waived by CRAB 1/29/2015 $17,463.03 paid back in April

Mason CLOQUALLUM ROAD 5.85 6.85 2305-01 Extended to 4/29/2017 3/26/2015 Multiple past emergency events

King West Snoqualmie Valley Rd 3.78 4.94 1709-01 Extended to 4/16/2016 3/4/2015 NEPA delays at WSDOT

Asotin Snake River Road 19.00 21.97 0209-03 Extended to 4/16/2017 2/26/2015 CRAB fund management

Wahkiakum Elochoman Valley Rd 0.37 0.64 3509-02 Extended to 4/16/2017 1/27/2015 County to combine with Culvert Proj

Chelan Chiwawa Loop Rd 3.35 4.57 0414-01 Amended to Increase Scope 2/20/2015 Widen Shldrs 28 ft to 30 ft

Stevens Swenson Rd 0.00 5.49 3309-03 Extended to 4/16/2016 4/4/2015 Re-Ad after rejecting bids

Kitsap Seabeck 2.31 3.40 1809-01 Extended to 4/16/2016 2/3/2015 Right of Way and indrect Court proc.

Pend Oreille Coyote Trail 8.00 9.05 3509-02 Amended to Increase Scope 2/2/2015 Increase MP to 7.99 – 9.06 

Date 

Approved Lapsing Date

Date 

Approved Lapsing Date



WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the accrued amount of $2,963,329 deposited to the
RATA in  February and March, 2015, be apportioned to the regions by their
2013 - 2015 biennium regional percentages after setting aside $82,000 for administration.

DISTRIBUTION

REGION PERCENT

ADMIN.

NORTHEAST

NORTHWEST

PUGET SOUND

SOUTHEAST

SOUTHWEST

TOTAL

Adopted by the CRABoard on April 16, 2015

RCW 36.79.030 establishes the Northeast, Northwest, Puget Sound, Southeast and 

Southwest Regions in Washington State for the purpose of apportioning Rural Arterial 

Trust Account (RATA) funds; and

RCW 36.79.040 specifies the manner in which RATA funds are to be apportioned to the 

five regions; and

the CRABoard established regional apportionment percentages for the 2013 - 2015 

biennium at its meeting of August 1, 2013; and

RCW 36.79.050 specifies the apportionment percentages that the CRABoard shall use 

once each calendar quarter to apportion funds credited to the Rural Arterial Trust Account; 

and

RCW 36.79.020 authorizes expenditure of RATA funds for costs associated with program 

administration;

681,722 111,959,322

100.00%

11.13%

PROGRAM

57,841,981

APPORTION  RATA  FUNDS  TO  REGIONS 

RESOLUTION 2015-003

23.66%

14.99%

3,374,047

2,040,192

10,824,815

215,830,940

807,250

7,172,502

36,596,822

515,878,093

71,107,509

484,755,956

119,131,824

75,651,710

34,556,630

4,544,201

31,122,137

CURRENT

APPORTION

43.49%

82,000

320,692

6.73%

1,253,090

193,913

Chair's Signature

ATTEST

13,183,944

2,963,329

431,911

10,017,565

202,646,996

54,467,934

PRIOR

PROGRAM TO DATEAPPORTION

(1983 - 2013)(2013 - 2015)

BIENNIAL

APPORTION RES RATA revenue to regions



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

Puget Sound

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Road Administration Board hereby approves the following projects

in the five regions and allocates the est. 2015 - 2017 fuel tax funds and turned back funds to the listed projects 

in the amounts shown.

Pts

Douglas Chief Joseph Dam BR Replace FA 17.78      

Spokane FORKER ROAD RC 151.59    

Stevens Aladdin Road MP 19.6 to 22.5 3R 101.67    

Douglas Coulee Mead./Moses Coulee Rd 3R 97.94      

Chelan Chiwawa Loop Road, Phase III 3R 84.82      

Ferry Inchelium Hwy 3R 74.85      

Grant Adams Rd. (SR 28 to Br.# 330) RC 60.46      

Lincoln Old Coulee Road Section 2 RC 44.31      

Stevens Addy Gifford 2R 79.62      

Pend Oreille Flowery Trail 2R 75.61     P

Douglas Douglas North Road 2R 50.37     P

Grant 9-NW (Quincy CL to Adams Rd) 2R 50.12      

Ferry Silver Creek, Sec. 1 2R 49.00      

Chelan Eagle Creek Road 2R 47.17      

Okanogan Highway 7 2R 45.98      

Adams Cunningham 2R 39.62     P

Spokane Bigelow Gulch Road RC 194.00   P

Lincoln Rocklyn Road Sec 2 3R 84.51      

Chelan Wenatchee Heights Road RC 78.60     P

Ferry Boulder Creek Sec. 1 3R 75.69     P

Grant 4-NE (N-NE to L-NE) RC 73.42      

Grant 4-NE (Hiawatha to Westshore Dr.) RC 48.73     P

TOTAL NEW NE REGION FUNDING *

Project

1,900,000    

1,106,000    

1,326,000    

COST

5,648,000    

1,250,000    

2,509,000    

720,000       

1,087,000    

600,000       

1,025,000    

1,145,000    

2,250,000    

900,000       

2,230,000    

1,202,000    

1,053,000    

4,701,000    

12,413,086  

2,251,000    

2,581,000    

3,043,000    

2,000,000    

NORTHWEST REGION:                                                                                                               

Type

P
a

r
tia

l

128,100            

15,696,700    

540,000       

1,193,400    

130,300            

648,000       

750,000       

2,025,000    

750,000       

1,500,000    

1,081,800    

750,000       

1,550,000      

750,000      

475,000            

750,000            

750,000            

250,800            

-                     

42,684,000               

1,030,500    

128,100      

922,500       

REQ

1,800,000    

FUNDING

11,939,000               -                     

5,000,000   

Est.  Fuel Tax Turned-Back Available for

2,692,533    17,296,000               

TOTAL  

RATA

38,000,000    9,430,632    

NORTHEAST REGION:

AllocationREGION  '15 - '17 Funds

Southeast

940,200       

5,000,000    

2,025,100    

2,322,900    

TOTAL

832,800            

1,800,000   922,100         

2,738,700   

8,990,800      4,275,690    

Northwest 4,229,400      60,181         

Southwest 5,696,200      2,402,228    

2,557,400      -               

7,288,000                 -                     7,288,000             

42,684,000           

11,939,000           

2,301,000                 

3,860,000                 -                     3,860,000             

-                     

2,251,617         

2,322,900   1,490,100      

FUNDING

809,900         

2,748,383      

1,650,000      2,025,100   375,100            

1,550,000      2,738,700    1,188,700         

877,900            

1,030,500   501,500         

750,000      

750,000      

529,000            

750,000      750,000            

2,025,000   

750,000            

648,000      

250,800      

540,000      

648,000            

750,000      750,000            

540,000            

1,125,000   

248,383      248,383            

1,125,000         

2,579,100    

1,125,000    

561,300      2,258,100    561,300            

789,300      1,710,000    789,300            

995,400      995,400       995,400            

PREVIOUS

RESOLUTION 2015-004

TO APPROVE 2015 - 2017 RAP PROJECTS

AND ALLOCATE ESTIMATED 2015 - 2017 RATA REVENUE

940,200      

Northeast 16,526,200    

2,301,000             

17,296,000           

County

the CRABoard met in accordance with WAC 136-160-070  to approve Rural Arterial Program 

projects and allocate Rural Arterial Trust Account funds, and

in accordance with WAC 136-161-070, the CRABoard is authorized to allocate estimated RATA 

revenue to proposed RAP projects, and

The RATA amounts allocated to projects in the first year of the biennium are limited to no more than 

ninety percent of the net amount estimated to be allocable to each region for the project program 

period, with the remaining percentage allocated at such time as deemed appropriate by the county 

road administration board, and

the best available estimate of 2015 - 2017 biennium revenues, including interest, and funds turned 

back through withdrawal or underrun indicates that the following approximate amounts will be 

available for allocation to new projects on the 2015 - 2017 arrays and partially funded RAP projects 

carried forward from previous biennium arrays in the five regions:

RoadName

TOTAL

Previous '15-'17

-                     

    NEW

Allocation (90%)

FUNDING



Pts

Project

COSTType

P
a

r
tia

lREQ FUNDING

RATA TOTAL

FUNDING

PREVIOUS

County RoadName

TOTAL     NEW

FUNDING

San Juan Orcas Road 3R 111.02   P

Skagit Bow Hill Road 3R 90.91   

Island Boon Road 3R 73.75  P

Clallam Old Olympic Highway 2R 72.00   

Jefferson South Discovery Road Pav't Pres. 2R 96.41   

Skagit FRANCIS ROAD 3R 90.90  P

Clallam Dry Creek Road 3R 87.71  P

TOTAL NEW NW REGION FUNDING

Snohomish Pilchuck River Bridge #581 FA 26.41      

Pierce Whiteman Road KPS DR 48.67      

Snohomish May Creek Bridge #559 FA 35.66      

TOTAL NEW PS REGION FUNDING

Garfield Gould City Mayview rd 3R 94.32      

Columbia Lower Hogeye Road 3R 92.82     P

Walla Walla Bussell Road RC 92.76      

Asotin SNAKE RIVER ROAD RC 88.77      

Benton Nine Canyon Road 3 RC 86.50     P

Yakima Summitview Rd. -- 3 RC 80.31     P

Kittitas No. 6 Road Bridge #79051 DR 93.00      

Klickitat Courtney RC 100.00    

Asotin Snake River Road 2R 98.79     P

Kittitas Westside Road 3R 92.96     P

Garfield Gould City Mayview Phase 4 3R 91.66     P

TOTAL NEW SE REGION FUNDING **

1,140,000    

1,748,200    

3,925,000    

761,000       

2,075,000    

2,813,000    

1,658,000    

2,355,000    

1,860,000    

4,192,600    

3,500,000    

4,523,000    

921,000       

3,000,000    

1,425,000    

1,150,000    

2,875,000    

2,563,000    

PUGET SOUND REGION:

11,430,000  

3,860,000    

PUGET SOUND REGION:                                                                                                               

1,913,688    

684,900            

1,417,000         

NORTHWEST REGION:                                                                                                               

900,000            

806,700            

93,300              

904,600       

828,900       

550,000       

1,492,200    

2,119,500    

1,674,000    

3,772,940    

3,150,000    

2,306,700    

2,046,000    

580,500       

450,000       

900,000       

1,500,000      

NORTHWEST REGION:

1,761,921   861,921         

2,587,500    

580,500      

2,400,000   

2,306,700   

340,491            

93,300        

450,000      450,000            

900,000            

369,509      369,509            

550,000      

828,900      

904,600      369,812         534,788            

828,900            

550,000            

SOUTHEAST REGION:SOUTHEAST REGION:                                                                                                               

792,200            

1,035,000    

1,674,000   

1,592,600   272,600         1,320,000         

686,000            

1,492,200   

2,496,500   

3,772,940   102,840            

1,680,000         

2,471,079   2,400,000         3,532,500    

684,900      684,900       

1,097,160   

1,417,000   1,417,000    

2,400,000    1,097,160         

374,800      

875,100      1,026,000    

1,572,800    374,800            

875,100            

71,079           

816,500         

3,670,100      

988,000         

700,000         

1,500,000      

240,009         

3,048,000    

645,000       

500,000       



Pts

Project

COSTType

P
a

r
tia

lREQ FUNDING

RATA TOTAL

FUNDING

PREVIOUS

County RoadName

TOTAL     NEW

FUNDING

Grays Harbor Blue Slough Road Realignment RC 86.18      

Cowlitz Delameter Road 3R 71.60      

Clark NE MANLEY ROAD 3R 70.40     P

Thurston DELPHI ROAD 3R 63.84      

Mason Matlock Brady Road 3R 58.43      

Lewis North Fork Road RC 55.40     P

Pacific Rue Creek Road 3R 52.98      

Mason Shelton-Matlock Culvert DR 86.00      

Mason Highland Culvert DR 85.00     P

Grays Harbor Garrard Creek Road Realignment RC 81.16     P

Wahkiakum Clear Creek Fish Passage DR 75.00     P

Cowlitz South Cloverdale Road 3R 71.52     P

Thurston Vail Road SE 3R 64.63     P

Pacific Parpala Road 3R 60.80     P

Wahkiakum Columbia Street Overlay, Segment 12R 60.17      

Wahkiakum Elochoman Valley Road - 2R 2R 52.07     P

Skamania Wind River Road 2R 52.00     P

TOTAL NEW SW REGION FUNDING

Allocation Summary:

NE Region

NW Region

Previously Partial-funded PS Region

SE Region

SW Region

Total Allocation:

Project Types:

FA = Federal Aid Bridge Unallocated NE BR $ *

SA = Local Funded Bridge3R = Rehabilitation Unallocated PS $

RC = Reconstruction Unallocated SE BR $ **

3R = Rehabilitation

2R = Resurface and Restore

DR = Drainage Structure Total Funding Available:

Adopted by the CRABoard on April 16 , 2015

Chair's Signature

ATTEST

     42,684,000 

     40,188,388 

       2,495,612 

          509,000 

          387,312 

       1,599,300 

600,000       

300,000       

380,000       

355,000       

1,750,000    

2,500,000    

500,000       

380,000       

1,460,000    

1,061,000    

1,020,000    

3,175,000    

2,159,000    

3,060,000    

2,000,000    

7,288,000    

262,500            

186,443            

587,032            

412,968            

270,000            

201,972            

278,028            

217,243            

432,000            

289,972            

SOUTHWEST REGION:                                                                                                               

764,167            

540,000       

270,000       

342,000       

2,000,000    

1,125,000    

1,000,000    

1,853,100    

306,900       

1,125,000   278,028            

SOUTHWEST REGION:

900,000       

1,300,500    

432,000       

1,000,000   

900,000      

2,000,000   

1,553,100   

89,057              

1,955,300   

1,000,000         

782,757            

289,972      324,000       

1,000,000         

432,000      

1,300,500   

2,600,000    

235,833      235,833            

1,300,000    

1,287,000    

278,028      500,000       

1,800,000    

412,968      

270,000      

262,500      

201,972      

186,443      

217,243      

713,468         

955,300         

846,972         

1,910,943      

553,100         

217,243         

135,833         

       7,288,000 

2,990,000    

1,445,000    

     15,696,700 

       3,860,000 

       1,913,688 

     11,430,000 



County Road Administration Board – April 16, 2015 

 

2nd PHASE CONSTRUCTION LAPSING TIME EXTENSION  
 

TUCANNON ROAD, MP 12.95– 15.55  

COLUMBIA COUNTY RAP PROJECT 0707-01 

 

 

I. Nature of Request: 

 

Columbia County, per their letter dated April 10, 2015 has requested a mid-construction phase 

lapsing time extension for the Tucannon Road project.  The project was scheduled to lapse on 

April 11, 2015 two years after initial construction had commenced on April 11, 2013 per  

WAC 136-170-030 -Terms of CRAB/county contract: 

 
“(2) Counties may implement a phased construction methodology in the completion of RATA 
funded projects. A phased construction methodology is described as the process to implement 
multiple construction contracts through competitive bid and award, contracts awarded through 
exercise of the small works roster process, or construction by county forces, or a combination of 
two or more of these three methods, in order to complete a single RATA funded project. If a 
county elects to use phased construction methodology, construction of at least one of 
the project phases must commence by the lapsing date and all remaining phases must 
commence within two years of commencement of the first phase. In the event the county 
fails to meet either of these timelines, repayment of expended RATA funds for all phases of the 
project will be required unless waived by the county road administration board in keeping with 
the provisions of this section. 
 

II. Background: 

 

The Tucannon Road project was fully RATA funded to $1,327,500 by the CRABoard on April 

19, 2007.  The county had established a phased construction methodology noting that the 

Heffercock Creek Culvert work would be accomplished by County Forces in 2013 and the full 

road construction project would be accomplished by competitive bid in 2014. As the project 

neared six year lapsing in construction, the county was able to start some of its’ scheduled 

county forces construction work on April 11, 2013,  just short of six years after the funds were 

awarded, and meeting the construction lapsing milestone.   

 

As of spring 2014, the county was on track to meet the two year “commencement of all 

remaining phases” requirement (WAC cited above).  The project was at 95% design and no 

issues with environmental or right of way were anticipated.  During WSDOT review of these 

however, the county has encountered environmental and right of way issues that prevented the 

project from moving forward: 

 

 Environmental Classification Summary 

 

The Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) was consulted early on to see if 

there were any special permitting requirements regarding protected species, and the WDFW 

biologist determined no Biological Assessment was needed.  Upon later review of the 

Environmental Classification Summary however, which the WSDOT requires from the county to 

JimO
Draft



fulfill federal National Environmental Protection Agency requirements, a clarification was 

required at a culvert replacement location that was near a part of the Tucannon River known to 

have protected species. At that time the WDFW could not confirm or deny the presence of the 

species, and the burden of proof fell to the county. Therefore a Biological Assessment was then 

required. 

 

The county asked the BA requirement be waived since the culvert is dry most of the year and all 

work would be done within the established work window and not in-water.  The county also 

cited it would meet construction requirements for Fish Passage Culvert Design published by 

WDFW.  This request was denied. 

 

The county therefore pursued the BA with its’ consultant, but after many assurances the county 

would receive a report from them, even draft version has not been supplied. 

 

Of note, the WSDOT project review staff has changed and they have expressed that a BA is no 

longer necessary.  Since the county has put the time and effort into a BA, WSDOT suggested it 

be completed in the event it is needed later. 

 

 Right of Way  

 

Right of way was also sent to WSDOT for review in fall 2013 to spring 2014. One property 

owner had expressed interest in potential abandoned land between the old and new alignments 

for the project, and wished to use it as a “land swap” for land the owner would be losing with the 

new roadway.  WSDOT states this would be complicated, and required the county hire an 

appraiser.  This was the first time in a situation like this the county has had to hire an appraiser. 

The appraiser was hired in July 2014 and the county is awaiting right of way plan revisions from 

the consultant, so they could proceed with the acquisition process.  The consultant has been 

unresponsive.  The county anticipates resolving right of way and acquisition by the end of this 

summer – 2015. 

 

The county requests the CRABoard grant a one year extension to the commencement of the 

roadway construction phase of the project – to April 11, 2016. 

 

III. Staff Analysis and Recommendation: 

 

Staff finds the above issues listed by the county would qualify the project for a potential 2-year 

extension had it submitted one before starting construction (see WAC 136-167-040, below), and 

an extension would likely been granted by the Director.  This WAC provides for time extensions 

of initial construction commencement.  No extension however was sought by the county at that 

time.   

 

The project is now being delayed after initial construction, between phases.  Staff finds that the 

phasing provision (paragraph (2)) was added to WAC 136-170-030 after the initial construction 

lapsing WAC was already in place.  Staff also finds that the phased construction WAC does not 

address extensions between phases, but states that all phases must commence within 2 years of 

the first.  Although the county may be entitled for an extension (if it hadn’t received the earlier 

“one time only” extension) if construction is viewed as applied the ‘whole project’ in its’ 

continuous development through phases, the phasing WAC itself appears to prohibit this.  Staff 



therefore defers to the CRABoard for further discussion and final determination regarding 

Columbia County’s request. 

 

 
WAC 136-167-040  

Lapsing of RATA allocation for approved projects. 
To encourage timely development and construction of approved projects, all projects for 

which RATA funds have been allocated must meet certain project development milestones. 
Failure to meet the milestones will result in action by the county road administration 
board to withdraw RATA funds from the project. 

(1) For the purposes of this section, a project will be subject to lapsing and withdrawal of its 
RATA allocation if: 

(a) The project has not begun the preliminary engineering within one year of project 
approval by the county road administration board; or 

(b) The project has not begun construction within six years of the date of project 
approval by the county road administration board. 

(2) A project shall be considered in preliminary engineering if RATA funds have been 
expended or evidence that non-RATA funds have been expended for preliminary engineering as 
provided for in RCW 36.75.050. A project shall be considered in construction if: 

(a) The construction contract for the work has been advertised for bids as provided for in 
RCW 36.77.020; 

(b) A contract has been awarded under the provisions of the small works roster contract 
award process; or 

(c) If done by county forces, the work has commenced. 
(3) If an approved project does not meet a required project development milestone, the 

county road administration board will, at its next regular meeting, withdraw RATA funds from the 
project.  

(4) At any time up to ten days before such meeting, the county may, in writing, request an 
extension of the lapse date. The county road administration board may grant such an extension 
if it finds that the delay in project development was for reasons that were both unanticipated and 
beyond the control of the county, and subject to the following: 

(a) A project extension will be granted one time only and will be no more than two years in 
length; and 

(b) The county can demonstrate that the project was actively pursued for completion within 
the original CRAB/county contract terms and can be completed within a two year extension; and 

(c) The request for an extension is based on unforeseeable circumstances that the county 
could not have anticipated at the time the project was submitted for RATA funding; and 

(d) An approved time extension will not be grounds for the county to request an increase in 
the RATA funding of the project; and 

(e) The executive director will determine a new lapse date, and all of the requirements 
listed above under subsections (1) and (2) of this section will apply except that further 
extensions will not be granted. 
(5) The CRABoard may at any time place a moratorium on lapsing of projects that are delayed 
due to CRAB initiated rescheduling and establish a new lapsing date to fit the CRABoard's 
programming needs. For those projects given a lapsing moratorium, section four shall be held in 
abeyance until the new lapsing date. 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.75.050
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.77.020


WAC 136-170-030  

Terms of CRAB/county contract. 
(1) The CRAB/county contract shall include, but not be limited to, the following provisions: 
(a) The contract shall be valid and binding, and the county shall be entitled to receive RATA 

funding in accordance with the vouchering/payment process as described in chapter 136-180 
WAC, only if the contract is properly signed and returned to the county road administration 
board within forty-five calendar days of its mailing by the county road administration board. 

(b) The county certifies that it is in compliance with the provisions of chapter 136-150 WAC. 
(c) The project will be constructed in accordance with the scope, design and project limits as 

described in the final prospectus and in accordance with the plans and specifications approved 
by the county engineer, and, if applicable, the phased construction plan submitted by the county 
engineer to the county road administration board. 

(d) The county will notify the county road administration board: 
(i) If a single construction contract is intended to fully complete the project, at the time of 

project advertisement, construction contract, and when the project has been completed. Should 
the small works roster process be utilized, then the initial notice must occur prior to initiating the 
contractor selection process. 

(ii) If county forces are utilized to fully complete the project, at the time of project notice, as 
required in RCW 36.77.070, commencement of construction activities, and when the project has 
been completed. 

(iii) If the project applies a phased construction methodology, at those times described in a 
phased construction plan, consistent with subsection (2) of this section. 

(e) The county road administration board will reimburse counties on the basis of monthly 
progress payment vouchers received and approved on individual projects in the order in which 
they are received in the county road administration board office, subject to the availability of 
RATA funds apportioned to the region; or subject to a minimum regional balance determined by 
the CRABoard for the purposes of cash flow; provided however, that if insufficient RATA funds 
are available or the legislature fails to appropriate sufficient RATA funds, payment of vouchers 
may be delayed or denied. Counties are ineligible to receive RATA funded construction cost 
reimbursements prior to satisfaction of the initial project notice requirement described in 
subsection (1)(d) of this section. 

(f) The county will reimburse the RATA in the event a project postaudit reveals ineligible 
expenditures of RATA funds. 

(g) The county may be required to reimburse the RATA in the event of early termination in 
accordance with the provisions of chapter 136-167 WAC. 

(h) The county agrees to amend the contract in cases where: 
(i) Additional RATA funds have been requested and approved under chapter 136-165 WAC; 
(ii) Other relief from the original scope, design or project limits has been approved by the 

county road administration board under chapter 136-165 WAC; or 
(iii) A project has been terminated without full RATA reimbursement under WAC 136-167-

030(2). 
(i) The county agrees to provide periodic project development progress reports as requested 

by the county road administration board. 
(2) Counties may implement a phased construction methodology in the completion of 

RATA funded projects. A phased construction methodology is described as the process 
to implement multiple construction contracts through competitive bid and award, 
contracts awarded through exercise of the small works roster process, or construction 
by county forces, or a combination of two or more of these three methods, in order to 
complete a single RATA funded project. If a county elects to use phased construction 
methodology, construction of at least one of the project phases must commence by the 
lapsing date and all remaining phases must commence within two years of 
commencement of the first phase. In the event the county fails to meet either of these 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-180
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-150
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.77.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-167
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-165
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-165
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-167-030
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-167-030


timelines, repayment of expended RATA funds for all phases of the project will be 
required unless waived by the county road administration board in keeping with the 
provisions of this section. 

(a) In order to be considered phased construction, each phase must: 
(i) Be distinct, independent, and nonoverlapping construction activities as to location and 

type of work; 
(ii) Result in separate function and utility; 
(iii) Be part of related and sequential construction activities that lead to overall project 

completion; 
(iv) Separately and collectively comply with state laws as to procurement of contract work 

and use of county forces; and 
(v) Not be implemented in a way that would otherwise be considered a split project, as 

described in WAC 136-170-060, without first obtaining approval as a split project. 
(b) In order to satisfy notification requirement of subsection (1)(d) of this section, a phased 

construction plan must be developed and submitted to the county road administration board at 
least fifteen calendar days prior to contract bid advertisement, beginning the selection process 
for a contractor through a small works roster process, or commencement of construction by 
county forces, whichever occurs first. The phased construction plan must: 

(i) Include a description of each construction phase, the contracting method to be employed 
or that county forces will be used; 

(ii) Include an estimated cost and begin and end dates for each construction phase; and 
(iii) Describe the relationship between construction phases and ultimate completion of the 
overall project. 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=136-170-060


 



































JimO
Draft












































































































	Agenda
	Item 2B Meeting Minutes Board January 29-30, 2015
	Item 3 Emergency WAC Changes
	Item 4A Rural Arterial Program Status Report
	Item 4B Rural Arterial Progam Project Actions Update
	Item 4C Resolution 2015-003
	Item 4D Resolution 2015-004
	Item 4E Project Requests
	Item 4E-1 Columbia County
	Item 4E-2 Jefferson County 
	Item 4E-3 Spokane County
	Item 4E-4 Yakima County

	Item 5 Set Public Hearing for July 2015 Board Meeting
	Item 6 Compliance Report
	Item 7 Resolution 2015-005
	Item 8A CRABoard Positions
	Item 8B County Engineer of the Year Nominations
	Item 8C Project/Program Manager of the Year Award
	Item 8D-1 Current Budget Status
	Item 8D-2 2015-2017 Budget - HB1299
	Item 8F Discussion on Gravel Road Pending Study
	Item 11 Deputy Director's Report
	Item 12A Intergovernmental Policy Report
	Item 12B Maintenance Manager's Report
	Item 12C-1 Systemic Safety Project
















